City of Walthourville

City Council Sarah B. Hayes City Administration
Mitchell Boston Mayor Shana T. Moss, City Clerk
Patrick Underwood Christopher Reed, Chief of Police
Bridgette Kelly “Always Moving Nicholas Maxwell, Fire Chief
Luciria L. Lovette While Improving” Dave Martin, Public Works
Robert (Bob) Dodd Luke R. Moses, City Attorney

II.
III.
IV.

VL
VII.
VIIL

IX.

XIIL.
XIIIL.
XIV.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

July 9, 2024 @ 6:00 PM
Call to Order Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Roll Call City Clerk
Invocation Appointee
Pledge of Allegiance In Unison
Approval of Agenda Councilmembers
Approval of Minutes (June 25, 2024) Councilmembers
Presentation None
Agenda Items:
1. LCPC Mr. Jeff Ricketson
Public Hearing. (Rezoning Petition 2024-033-W).
2. LCPC Mr. Jeff Ricketson
Business License Request for STR 8 Drop Seafood Kitchen.
3. LCPC Mr. Jeff Ricketson
Business License Request for H&L Tobacco, Inc.
4. City of Walthourville Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Intergovernmental Agreement regarding Liberty County 2024 T-SPLOST.
5. Johnnie Frasier Park Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Department Reports City of Walthourville
Mayor and Coucil Comments Elected Officials
Citizens Comments Walthourville Citizens
Executive Session Attorney Luke R. Moses
Office of the Mayor Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Adjournment Councilmembers

If an Executive Session is needed, it will be called for (1) Litigation (2) Personnel or (3) Real Estate

All Meetings are held at the Walthourville Police Department and are open to the Public.




L.

1.

II1.

IV.

VL

VIIL.

City of Walthourville
Mayor and Council Meeting Minutes
June 25, 2024 @ 6:00 PM
Walthourville Police Department

Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 PM by Mayor Sarah B. Hayes.

Roll Call: The roll was taken by the City Clerk with the following members present:

Mayor Sarah B. Hayes Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette
Councilman Mitchell Boston Councilman Patrick Underwood
Councilwoman Bridgette Kelly Councilman Robert Dodd

The attendance of the council constituted a quorum.
Attorney Luke R. Moses was present:
The Invocation was rendered by Ms. Gwen Dykes.
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited in unison.

Approval of Agenda: The motion to approve the agenda was made by Councilman
Dodd and the second was added by Mayor Pro Tem Lovette:
Vote: 5-0: Motion Carried Unanimously.

Approval of Minutes: The motion to approve the June 11, 2024 minutes was made by
Councilman Boston and the second was added by Councilman Dodd.

Vote: 4-1: Motion Carried.
Councilmembers voting favorably were: Councilmen Boston, Underwood, Dodd and
Councilwoman Kelly.
Councilmember always opposing: Mayor Pro Tem Lovette.

Presentation:

City of Walthourville : Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Presented a Certificate of Appreciation from Keep Liberty Beautiful and a yard stake
acknowledging the city’s participation. She stated the City of Walthourville is present
and actively engaged in cleanup, recycle fairs and other events hosted by Keep Liberty
Beautiful.

Liberty Transit Ms. Natasha Chatham and Ms. Ernestine Williams.
Presented the newest service offered by Liberty Transit which is Paratransit. Liberty
Transit ADA Paratransit provides services to individuals who are unable to use the
fixed-route bus service because of a disability. Liberty Paratransit take appointments
24 hours a day. Liberty Transit Paratransit provides shared ride, curb to curb service to
persons determined to be “ADA eligible” for trips that cannot be made using the fixed



VIII.

route service. A customer may use the fixed route service for some trips and at other
times they may need to use the paratransit system. Ms. Chatham provided packets that
will be available at City Hall for citizens to pick up.

Agenda [tems:

L;

LCPC Ms. Mardee Sanchez
Presented the preliminary plat for Boundary Hall Subdivision. The Developer is
Liberty Properties and Holdings, Co, LLC and the engineer is T.R. Long
Engineering. Boundary Hall will consist of 111 lots, single family homes that are
zoned PUD. The homes will be located on Hardman Road in Walthourville.

There will be 53 Standard Lots which will include 6,000 square feet, of which will
be the minimum Gross Lot Area, the minimum usable lot area will be 4, 500 square
feet. There will be 58 Garden Lots which will include 4,500 square feet of
minimum gross lot area with a minimum usable lot area of 4,000 square feet.

The city will be dedicated to new streets (5,466 feet) and the subdivision will obtain
water and sewer from the City. Councilman Dodd asked will the retention pond be
fenced. Engineer Trent Long stated yes. Mayor Hayes stated a citizen contacted her
about the road leading into the property and he (Lloyd Busbee) wanted to ensure
that it remained open and passable due to his elderly parents residing about two
miles back into the property. Mr. Busbee was concerned that with the construction
and heavy equipment the road would be constricted, and emergency personnel
might not be able to answer a call if his parents required emergency services. Mr.
Trent Long stated this could be accommodated, Developer, Mr. Claude Dryden was
present in the audience, and he also stated this was a reasonable request that could
be accommodated.

Councilwoman Kelly asked, “if the city had enough water and pumping capacity to
meet the demands of these home,” Mr. Long stated yes.

Councilman Dodd made the motion to approve with standard conditions as set forth
by LCPC and also the Special Conditions of keeping the road passable and scraped.
The second was added by Councilman Underwood.

Vote: 5-0: Motion Carried Unanimously.

LCPC Ms. Mardee Sanchez
Presented a Business License Request for New Creation Construction. The business
owner is Mr. Joseph M. Hudson and will be located at 144 Vandiver Road. The
owner is requesting to use a room in the residence as an office to operate the
construction company. The business will consist of handyman work such as
painting, remodeling, and construction work that will be done off of the premises.
The motion to approve was made by Councilman Dodd and the second was added
by Mayor Pro Tem Lovette. Vote: 5-0: Motion Carried Unanimously.



IX.

3. Johnnie Frasier Park City of Walthourville
This item was discussed in the Mayor and Council’s Workshop and no action was
taken. Park fees were discussed.

Department Reports

Water Department Mr. Patrick Golphin
Reported the city had received several calls of smelly water. Attorney Luke Moses read
a statement from EOM Regional Director, Mr. Charlie Heino. Mr. Heino and his team
are responsible for the city’s water sampling and system. The statement from Mr. Heino
in its entirety is listed below and will become an official part of the minutes.

“Ms. Moss,

Since we took over in September of 2022, we have checked the wells without fail
every day of the year including holidays. One of our trained techs physically goes to
the well sites and verify operation, disinfection, and chemical levels. Since we
started, we have performed 662 chlorine residual tests to verify that a safe and
permitted level of chlorine is maintained in the system. In the past 6 months, we
have performed 23 state required bacteriological/ E. Coli tests and all results were
NEGATIVE for bacteriological contamination. Since 2019, 40 Lead samples have
been taken and show an average lead level of 1.6 PPB (Parts per Billion). The EPD
limit is 15 PPB, so we are well below the required state limit.

This past month the EPD conducted a stie visit and took samples from two sites in the
system and found no issues with water quality. The only deficiencies found were
specific items at the well such as a chemical containment pad for fluoride, a scale,
and chlorine switchover unit, etc. None of the items noted in the letter (attached)
influence water quality in any way, and they will be completed or be in process to be
completed this week.

- Charlie Heino
Regional Director. “

Attorney Moses stated the city’s water was safe. Does the city have aging infrastructure?
Absolutely, but the city’s water system is governed by EPD and if the water was found to
be unsafe, the city would lose its license.

As a note about the water, the city’s water problem did not happen immediately. In 2012
G. Ben Turnipseed Engineering, Mr. Ben Turnipseed advised the Mayor and Council at
that time that they needed to take action, and make upgrades/repairs to the Water System
or the city would encounter water problems in the future. The 2012 Council took no action.



Fire Department Chief Nicolas Maxwell
Reported the department had answered 36 calls, 25 of which were medical. As of June 30, 2024
the City of Walthourville will not answer calls into unincorporated Liberty County (Highway 119
area). The county is opening a Fire Station that will encompass that area. Phase I of the Fire
Hydrant Testing is complete.

Police Department Chief Christopher Reed
Reported the department responded to 53 calls of service, 5 vehicle crash and 10 citizens were
arrested. He further elaborated on the department's Diversion Program. The diversion program
allows citizens that receive traffic citations to obtain a reduced fine, and it gives them 60-90 days
to pay. He also reported that Corporal Adams and him were in instructor school in Savannah. This
class will help the department tremendously because the class will be able to be taught in-house.

X. Mayor and Council Comments

Councilman Mitchell Boston stated the Sanitation Bid is out for the privatization of the Sanitation
Department.

Councilman Patrick Underwood stated to remember the city’s Movie Night on July 4™ at 8:00 PM
(time has changed to 8:30 PM since the meeting) at Johnnie Frasier Park. The movie that will be
shown is The Lion King. He also stated perhaps the council needs to revisit the policy on bagging
leaves. He states he thinks the leaves should be collected bagged or unbagged. Several
councilmembers chimed in that this should be revisited also.

Councilwoman Bridgette Kelly stated she had no report.

Mayor Pro Tem Luciria L. Lovette asked, “did we apply for Grants by Senators Ossoff and
Warnock?” Mayor Hayes, asked, “what grants?”” The Mayor Pro Tem stated, “the city left money
on the table because grants were available.” She was asked what type of grants and Mayor Hayes
reminded her the city’s audits were lapsed; therefore, the city did not qualify to receive any grant
funds. She also urged the city to look into FLOST (Flexible Local Option Sales Tax). Mayor Hayes
stated she was aware of this tax as well as TSLOST that will be presented for renewal.

Councilman Robert Dodd stated, “the weather is extremely hot, drink plenty of fluids. He also
urged everyone to be mindful of the signs of overheating.

XI. Citizens Comments (citizens are allotted 3 minutes)

1. Alma Wells of 84 Jones Court stated her concern was her Water Bill. Her bill went from $60.00
to $ 171.00. She said the fire fee was added and now the water has increased. Mayor Hayes stated
she would contact her to have a meeting with her at City Hall. (City Hall has attempted to reach
out to Ms. Wells to schedule this meeting and neither phone numbers that Ms. Well has on her



account at City Hall are working numbers. City Hall has mailed a letter to Ms. Wells, asking her
to contact City Hall to schedule the meeting and update her account.

2. Patricia Green stated her comment was directed on the water also. She stated she was a former
member of Council (served from 1983-2020) and she wanted to know if the city would be
providing water to the residents on Tibet Road in Long County. And with the new developments
coming into the city, does the city have capacity for sewer? Mayor Hayes stated, “no the city will
not be providing water to Long County and yes the city has the capacity for sewer consumption.

3. Terry Emmons of 51 Carrie Street had a complaint about the water. She states she experiences
discolored water from her bathroom about 3 times a year. She stated the water is rusty, and she
experiences most of the problems after it rains. She stated she has experienced problems three
times in 2023. Mayor Hayes stated she would be scheduling a meeting with her about her concerns
and problems. She also added she heard the information that was read about the water being safe
but she was still concerned, because she did not want a Flint, Michigan situation here. Mayor
Hayes stated, “the City’s water is tested daily and sent to EPD, if there was any indication of unsafe
water EPD would be involved.”

XII. Executive Session None

XIII. Office of the Mayor Mayor Sarah B. Hayes
Reported the city’s citizen notification system. She stated citizens could go to the city’s website at
www.cityofwalthourville.com and select the tab for City Updates. Upon depressing the tab,
citizens will input their email address and telephone number and they will receive all updates.
Mayor Hayes stated she has signed up and she is receiving alerts.

XIV. Adjournment Councilmembers
At 7:33 PM a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by Mayor Pro Tem Lovette and the second
was added by Councilwoman Kelly Vote: 5-0: Motion Carried Unanimously



0ICVO0SO [991ed INLOT Se
PaQILIOSap JaylIng SI pue J[IAINOYIBA\ Ul PROY MBUS T[T Ie
pa1e00] St A119dord owoy [Iqow € 10J (SWOH PalnorjnueiA]
A[lwej-o[SuIS) HINAS O} ([BnuspIsay [eIm[noL3y) [-YV
WOJJ -/+ SaI0® ()" AUOZI 0} UILIBJA] BIONT “JIQUMO 3] JO J[eYdq
U0 UnJeJA BIPUY AQ panrwgns uddq sey uonnad Juruozal y

M-€€0-F20C Uon1aJ SUIUOZay




T VZ/0E/S 8LE8Y

"DYASAULH PANQ Uf BUDL )

H A1 2jjfAsaUIH

PUNO) pue J0AeN

ajjAsaulf Jo A ayL - wd

00'€ ‘Y20z ‘8L 40T 'AepsinyL
‘ajjinnoyiiep ‘peoy abpeusier

-261 JuauIedag 31/0d d[|IA
~INOUMEA 1€ 130U [j124 PUNOY) pUE
1042 DIAINOYIIEM JO A1 AL
~urd 00'9 "0z '6 AINf ‘Aepsant
"u0)BujwaL ‘peoy Ainquns

PIO 951 IjeH A uoibujwaYy

18 390U |14 |1PUNOD Uk JoAeY
uoIBujwald JO AyD ayL-~wd

OEb '¥C02 '6 AIn( 'AepsanL
Kapoyiny Buuiaon ajqeyjddy
2y} Aq pIPH 99 0) sBulRDH 211qNd
“RIASAUIH U 400() PUZ 42215
IR YUON Z1 1 ‘Xauuy dsnoy
-unan Auno) Auaqr ays e "wrd
0Ep 3¢ 'YZOZ 91 dunf Buppaw
2jand e pioy jIiw ojssiuuio)
Bujuuryg paIep|jOsu0D A11aq 1T AL
! sBupway 1qnd

J9)e) 1 SeUI0) put ¢ SBUIPOH
ae353 ooy pA0J JO 5pue) AQ 153/
PUR2e|Q URNT PUE URWIPDAL] WEpY
Jo spue| G HLNOS ‘peoy Ainquns
PIOAQ 15v3 {A1mawa) pue yainiy
ueagsald ARMmpIW pUe UojEAd
5oy AIRM)IW LIRS 110 JO SpUR|
£Q HIHON :5#0]10) 5¢ Aawio) 1o
mou papunog 5} Auadold ‘900690
PUR ‘500890 ‘200890 512124 WLD1
58 PAGLIDSIP JAYUN) 5| pUe BlIA
-SaU[H pus uoIGU|WAY4 U| PeoY

51 Auadaig

PaYRENY) HIY O3 (0Z-1eRUPISaY
Awed-0|BUIS) 0Z-Y Wol) -/ + sa100
€1 2U0ZR) 0 D17 'sjEIUaY pue
sBUIp|OH Yueqhey Aq panjuigns
uaaq sey uoppad bujuozal y

H 7 14-9€0-v20T

uonpiad Bujuozay

UOLRIYRON I[N

DT s3uawsaAY Agjays jaor jo
Spue) AQ LSIM PUP IS PIePODM ']
' JO Spu] Aq HLNOS 45 PIEpOOp
'l f PUR JUALIRADIL| BUIOH 102§
VHQ WS THRW Jo spue) 4q 1SV
uawaaosdul) awoH NoIs vaa
0§ el pue yany) isndeg
Arpuoissiiy uojz " Jo spuey Aq
HLHON i5Mm0j|0j se APt} Jo mou

papunoq 5| Auadald 'inay 190

O} (IPRIAUNLOY [RINIAO) Z-D WY
~/+ SB12E OF') 2UOZaI O} URWP(DY
HIRW J2UMO 2 JO JlBYaq UO 2u)

‘Bugiaaulbug uidnew Aq paniuiqns
uaaq sey uoypad Bujuozal y
H-§E0-PZOT UO32d Bujuozay
“AemybiH adioyia|Bo 1sap Aq
ASIM PUB {[eaN,0 AARAS pue Ul
R(ung Jo spur| AQ HLNOS 51100
Buoa pue Aiieq 'oudreg Apaquy
‘SSRID || ‘WIOYMIUM K1agar ‘ieus
€Ul JO spue| A9 L5y

HLHON i5Mofj0)

® £]18W110) J0 MOU papunoeq s|

Auadoid '£61V650 122/8d W11

52 PAG(SIP JAULIN) 5] pul
~$2UIH U) AermyBiH adioy|
159M 016 10 pa1e20) 5] Auadosg

“YBnoIY) BAP Yiim JueINElSH) 0

0 (|epJauILI0) ALMyBIH) €3 01
(1enuapisan Ajiwe)- i) HAW woij
/4 SO0 OF'§ U0z O} ‘|LIaN,O

Aduep Yaumo ayj 40 jjeyac uo Oy

awdoRAd] DWM Aq wans

H-PEQ-PZOT UojIRd Bujuozey
"UIMRI NOT ES0Y pue 2PN 3
1S3M pue fuehig ejpAT jo spue|
HLNOS MW UOA (220 pue
510da9y SIdWPURWWO) Ud)

£q 15V ipeoy meys jo spuv) &q
HLHON :5#0](0) se £|1ausi0j Jo mou
‘papunoq 5| Auadold '012v050
22100 WL 5€ paquasap Jayuny
5] PUE A||IAINOL[EA U] peoy
MRYS 9Z |7 1® pnedo| 5| Auadosy
*DULION DGO © O (WO paIn
~RNURH Ajjwied-2{6uiS) HWAS

W R2NV] SBUMO Ay JO Jleyaq
UjMew eapuay Aq panjwans
udaq sey uoppad bujuozal y
M-EE0-¥Z0Z UolINad Bujuozay




¥

4006080 )

5 N ¢
,, ,,,,,uﬁfoo%o\ \Ng

£ZLI6K0.

.. v
wF,

vAEZNo6v0

LZLO6V0




ST =t .._M: U7 Dus,
<3 or9a Ve, e .
NS P
S oY

o e 1Bee o) et e = o) il
HW 45 # BN :
H4 PP fQunoag Buiuoy _. 2
| e SLEN
= . 'Wq'u
4 pA
=
f =
(=)
_,AAA f
4 ¥ ’ W
5 v
1% .L\
i \
A 0ES x 74
& \...W..va,u‘ ; X :
; : @ v ,




‘Ajradoad s, 19381 Awr uo awoy arqowt
e a0e[d ued [ os Ajrdoid smyy suozor o3 Supyse we |

IATJRIIEN]




IHHIVY.

4334 - IWIS

TAYI YIONOZO JO LM

-3¥1N0IVW ONY SONYON L€ MFTINIR
ML HLIA LIIAWOINOD i QFWVIN
778 SYH OGNV 031iF¥7d ONYT WL O
O11YIN353¥J3¥ 1D3¥POD Vv SI FIHL
NOINIQO M NI LVHL AdILl¥3D |

(2 3NOZ) " 3NOZ GHVZVHOOOW v NI 10N S| \L.x.wuoznw_z.r
,001=,1:31v0S L6/81/2) ;31va
VIONO39 - ALNNOD ALM3BIT— QWO 8SPI
3TNANNOHLTYM 40 ALID 3HL NI S3¥OV €90°2
J1VISI'NILMVN 03 (HO4 ASAYHNS

191D Sindoaq NoD BY - Al
m f A 0 Ava
"SIHL NO ONII4 ¥Od QIA0UddY

“231J0 54910 uno) &
T~ Z7
NOISSINKOD DNINNVY

A ut R6a61° 2N
1 001295 10
ANIOF ALNNOD ALH3EN

ofivg
ut p10321 Jo pajfy sew weyd spiL

3NN 3INITHV3 _

¥3ASIVYEYd WvS

,92°L92 M, 62 LboSES ine
5

8rezi| 'sdi

4
=
.
Q[
S
v
m
=)

Sy, 1S°GEE M SEcE

89292 3,000005€N
M/4,09 QVON MVHS

e




J0 yoeq apnjoul 01
602 |924ed 1ejd-ay

BN sa108 §'0
HINl epima|gnog) 10| @jeiedas
M3} 23207,

3uruozay pasodoir




‘AJ1SUIP-MO] “IV1JUIPLSIL
sp Myiadosd sy sajpulisap uvjJ aeisuayaiduio) ayJ e
Jue[J aAIsuayarduio)) Ayuno))
A_qr] 9yl 03 wiIojuod asn pasodord oy seo ¢

'SAK e
J(sN71l) Apmig asn pue jurof
JeMalG 10 9yl 03 wiIojuod asn pasodord oy sso(] ‘7

'SIX e
(PouUoZ AJJUL.LIND
Se 9NJeA JIWOUO0I? J[qeuosear aaey Apradoad s1yj sa0(q I

SISATeuy 3Uruoy




0N s
¢A3a3es d11qnd Jo uorstaoad ayj 10 “SanyIIN “S[OODS

UO puk “4Isuel} pue s3}9913s surpnpur uonelrodsuern
Uo uaping snpun ue a3eard [esodoird 3uruoz ayj [[IM 9

‘928 e
(S9sn Agqresau Jo MIlA Ul 9[geyms asn pasodoad ays ST °g

N«
¢senradoid Agreau jo Ajiigesn
pue onfeA ayj UO 109JJ9 3SIdAPE Ue 3] Y} [[IM %

SISATeuy 3Uruoy




'PIJOU JUON] o
Jpajoeduur Ajosiaape
9q Aewl UDdIUM SIS [edHI0)SIy onbrun aroyy a1v g

ON -«
. Jmerds, o8ernoouo
pue ,3109Jf9 Ourwiop, e 9sned J3ueyd SIY} PNOM 'S

'ON o
/S[e03 WLI93-3U0] [ed0] INO
JO 9suadxa a3 je ures uwIdl-3I0ys e MOJ[e SIUy} PINOM °/

SISATeuy Suruoy




ON o.
.EE@N“ ”
([®l .
I} 2
anbrun o i :
0D |
= g
M UD e
- ; TUOZ
ddns 2
e 110 .
reaoxdd =
} 0}
3 9y
TISTX
d Sur
e
UIo)]

ON H..oﬁ
p u U3 S
ST
e
O[J € Ul [92.
po
Jezey
e d
Jed

Uo7/
ATeuy 3ur
SIS




plepuelg
SUOTIIPUO. )

M-€€0-F20T uoniaJ SUruozay

[eAoIddy/

Uojepuawwoddy DJDT]




‘AJLIoyne
[eJUSWUISA08 3ulaoidde 9y} pue ‘UOISSTWIWO))
3uruue]J 9yl 10 DJIDT Y3 Jo 103931L(] 93 Jo Teaoxrdde
pue uonedoynou Jotid jnoyirm pamofe are reaoidde
JO SUO[IPUOD Y} WOIj UOHPLIAJP IO d3Ueyd ON

"UOT}Oe SIY3 JO UOTIIPUOD B PIIdPISUO0D
ore uopedrdde smyy ur pordwir 10 paureyuod
Sjuswalels pue ‘sjenrdjewr ‘syjuewndop  ‘sueld [V

UONINIISUOD AUE JO JUSWOUWI WIOD
0] Jord sjiuwIad  pue  S9SUDI[  [eIOPY  pue
ale)s ‘[edo] padmbar e ureiqo jsnuw juedridde ayf,

SUONIIPUO)) pIepuelq




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: July 9, 2024

Business License: STR 8 DROP Seafood Kitchen
Business Owner: Christopher Miller
Address: 4981 W. Oglethorpe Highway
(Duncan Property)
Zoned: C-3 (Highway Commercial)
Comments: Using space for base of operations/commissary

for food truck.

Recommendation: APPROVAL

LCPC Staff: % M‘PW 1.2-34

Lori Parks Date
Zoning Administrator




S L WAL THO& *

& z
G o)
City of Walthourville Business License Division
?',, & Mailing Address: P.O Box K
"om,,, KA Walthourville, GA 31333
eSS L Office Location 222 Bushee Road

Walthourville, GA 31333
Phone:(912) 368-7501
Web site address- www.cityofwalthorville.com

Application For corporation or limited Liability Company LLC
Occupation Tax Certificate

*The application must be filled out completely to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation Tax
Certificate. Payment must be filed with the application to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation tax
Certificate. This application will not be processed if it is not accompanied by the appropriate tax fee. You
will not be billed. Please print with ink or type. In order for the appropriate tax or fee to be determined
the application accompanied by all appropriate documents must be submitted in person.

Pursuant to The Georgia Immigration Reform Act that was passed by the State Legislature and signed by
the Governor all persons applying for renewing a City of Walthourville Tax Certificate must provide a
secure and verifiable document as required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1(e) (1) and sign and notarize the affidavit
required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1 (e) (2) and the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 36-60-6 (d).

This Business is: (i/ﬁ\lew Application
( ) Ownership Change / Date ownership changed & Certificate #
()l am filling a name/or address change for Certificate#

Name business as > | ?\% b\\bv Do c\, Business Phone#(412) S0 D ~ 1\ OL
Name ofCorporatlon/LLC"‘ SORE DOW h:r{a(' cd Hiilinen

Business Address 4§\ \l. [‘.Q\Z *v\ef P Fhav - Wanesai\le G 212) A
Mailing Address5 5D N saniiiw Ao A Lﬁ!’ arsy 0 23130 ]

Email Address C\ny1 5 o \ay L DE b € 0(!7\;\..\ oy

Full Detailed Description of

Business \'DQL\ XY Wi & Q&_\\\Y\Lj (Lo0Wed Suuébud

Date Business began in City of Walthourville
#of employees in City of Walthourville b E-verify# (Required if 11 or more employees

State Sales Tax ID# Federal ID #i’\ - 374370\
Owner Name L3 50 o Nu\Vex™ SSHASA Y1 4302 DOB_M 2 0] 3Y
Home AddressSSo NG w s Ar Apt# City AMennwrsr State &3 zip_ 313%)

**+ Al electrical, mechanical, plumbing, well drilling contractors, mobile home dealers, mobile home installers, and any other contractor that is
required to have a State of Georgia License will be required to attach a copy of the license to this application before insurance.

**+All commercially used building may be subject to an inspection for fire and safety code compliance prior to any certificate of occupancy or
business license being issued.



Are you, the applicant the corporation, LLC or any shareholder currently delinquent in payment of any
taxes or fees to any state or local government? _IN__[f yes, please indicate the type of tax or fee, and
the amount due with the reason the tax is delinquent.

If this property is zoned residential, no clients | swear or affirm that | have obtained or will obtain
Employees, sales, deliveries, storage of inventory, within thirty days of the date of this application a
Or equipment are allowed on the premises. Only City of Walthourville Certificate of Occupancy as
One commercial vehicle not to exceed 12,500 |bs required by the city ordinances.

Gross weight used as transportation by the occupant
May be parked at the residence.

I will comply with the Zoning // = S
Restrictions stated above: g‘j‘(\ Signature: AL
(initals)

I Cl\(\v'\smg\w Y\ \&/affirm that the facts stated by me are true, | understand any misrepresentation
or fraudulent statement is grounds for automatic dismissal of this application and/revocation of the
license. | understand that all signs displayed on my premise must be permitted by the City of
Walthourville, | further understand that my business must operated in compliances with all applicable
state, federal & local laws, ordinances & regulations, & that the granting of this occupation tax
certificate or payment of this occupation tax does not waive the right of any federal, state or local entity
to regulate & enforce laws, ordinances & regulations. | understand that all decisions of Business License
Division may be appealed to the City of Walthourville.

This_ & dayof QW) G L2090
’J/ _ = .
Signature of applicant / —L A legibly print name Q\’\‘(\Sm\"?\’\&\’ Miller

This application must be approved by the Liberty County Planning Commission

Tax Map & Parcel# 050 n I(ﬂ 5 Zoning Classification c 3
Approved by: QAW ‘Pa’\m" Date Approved:

Date the request will be presented to Mayor and Council: I’I - q B a’ L}

*+* APPLICANT MUST COMPLETE THE AFFIDAVITS AND PROVIDE A SECURE AND VERIFIABLE DOCUMENT***



Secure and Verifiable Documents Under 0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2
Issued August 1, 2011 by the Office of the Attorney General, Georgia

The [llegal Immigration Reform and Enforcement Act of 2011 (“I[IREA™) provides that “[njot
later than August 1, 2011, the Attorney General shall provide and make public on the
Department of Law’s website a list of acceptable secure and verifiable documents. The list shall
be reviewed and updated annually by the Attorney General.” 0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(f). The
Attorney General may modify this list on a more frequent basis, if necessary.

The following list of secure and verifiable documents, published under the authority of O.C.G.A.
§ 50-36-2, contains documents that are verifiable for identification purposes, and documents on
this list may not necessarily be indicative of residency or immigration status.

A United States passport or passport card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]
A United States military identification card [O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A driver’s license issued by one of the United States, the District of Columbia. the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas
Islands, the United States Virgin Island, American Samoa, or the Swain Islands, provided
that it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information
regarding the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to
enable the identification of the bearer [O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

An identification card issued by one of the United States, the District of Columbia, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas
Islands, the United States Virgin Island, American Samoa, or the Swain Islands, provided
that it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information
regarding the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to
enable the identification of the bearer [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a2]

A tribal identification card of a federally recognized Native American tribe, provided that
it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information regarding
the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to enable
the identification of the bearer. A listing of federally recognized Native American tribes
may be found at:
hip-fiwww_bia.cov/WhoWeAre/BLA/OIS/TribalGovernmentServices/TribalDirectorv/ind
ex.him [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CER § 274a.2]

A United States Permanent Resident Card or Alien Registration Receipt Card [0.C.G A.
§ 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

An Employment Authorization Document that contains a photograph of the bearer
[0.C.G.A. § 530-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A passport issued by a foreign government [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]



0.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(2) AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a loan, grant, tax credit and/or other public
benefit, as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, administered by the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs, the undersigned applicant verifies one of the following with respect to my application for a public

benefit: /
] am a United States Citizen.

1)
2) I am a legal permanent resident of the United States.
3) I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act

with an alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal
immigration agency.

My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal
immigration agency is:

The undersigned applicant also hercby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has provided
at least one secure and verifiable document, as required by O.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit.

The secure and verifiable document provided with this affidavit can best be classified as:

In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and willfully
makes a false fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be guilty of a
violation of O.C.G.A. 16-10-20, and face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal statute.

: o - ; - ‘

Executed this thez_’ day of D¢ \g' . 2Q i in__ Amesalle (city), M (state).
L~
*Signature of Applicant

Chrstophe miller
Printed Name of Applicant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN
BEFORE ME ON THIS/T
(z DAY OF 7 :

L M /W

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:

[2-26-2"]

*This Affidavit must be signed by the same person who execidtes the Application Certification Form Letter



Private Employer Affidavit Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d)

By executing this affidavit under oath, the undersigned private employer verifies one of the
following with respect to its application for a business license, occupational tax certificate, or other
document required to operate a business as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d):

Section 1. Please check only one:
(A) On January 1* of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or

corporation employed more than ten (10) employees'.

*** [f you select Section 1(A), please fill out Section 2 and then execute below.

(B) V On January 1* of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed ten (10) or fewer employees.

**+% If you select Section [(B), please skip Section 2 and execute below.
Section 2.
The employer has registered with and utilizes the federal work authorization program in
accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6. The
undersigned private employer also attests that its federal work authorization user identification
number and date of authorization are as follows:

Name of Private Employer

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number

Date of Authorization

I hereby declare under jenalty of perjurf that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on S°Y_, 22, 2(&_‘{_ in hua Meity), G/ (state).

Vi el

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent

(hstoper oY
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent

SUBSCRIBED AIE SWORN BEFORE
ON THIS THE & DAYOE_J ‘_/e , 2084
d )

Ay fondes
NOTARY PUBLIC A
My Commission Expires: 12 - Al 77

! To determine the number of employees for purposes of this affidavit, a business must count its total number of
employees company-wide, regardless of the city, state, or country in which they are based, working at least 35 hours

a week.



A Merchant Mariner Document or Merchant Mariner Credential issued by the United
States Coast Guard [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A Free and Secure Trade (FAST) card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]

A NEXUS card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]

A Secure Electronic Network for Travelers Rapid Inspection (SENTRI) card [0.C.G.A.
§ 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]

A driver’s license issued by a Canadian government authority [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);
8 CFR § 274a.2]

A Certificate of Citizenship issued by the United States Department of Citizenship and
Immigration Services (USCIS) (Form N-560 or Form N-561) (0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);

6 CFR § 37.11]

A Certificate of Naturalization issued by the United States Department of Citizenship and
Immigration Services (USCIS) (Form N-550 or Form N-570) [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);

6 CFR § 37.11]

In addition to the documents listed herein, if, in administering a public benefit or
program, an agency is required by federal law to accept a document or other form of
identification for proof of or documentation of identity, that document or other form of
identification will be deemed a secure and verifiable document solely for that particular
program or administration of that particular public benefit. [0.C.G.A. § 50-3 6-2(c)]



woo ebAunosfiaqlymmm/r. diy N

¥202/¢/L uo patuld

V

198} ¥6 = your |

Sl0'0

895€-9.28 (Z16) :auoyd
€LE1E B16I039 'I|IASa UL
0SSl @1nS '1884S ulely 00L

82140 ,S10SSassy
Aunog Apaqn

u%ﬁ..touswsa APIRGAINS O Sfeinoomm A| |icsP6 9y 10

pad :pey [l sjeosed

abewy speoy
enig -enig . 300H pueT L epuiano [N
TEEN G HICENS) . aul7 oue) sealy

0'C WASI¥d Auno) Aueqi

N . 5
i =5 a .n LT _::__:::C Aswinaae e Y10} 2:3_.:6&.:: il selunEs oA AN
ORIt [Xodd i SISy AD P SEOIeD e Si1E
.mEan OISO, 0/ oD ds- 00 R 10§ B T 5: 8 11 K v, s 98 (1 GORRLS O] (IO rs TR oY d Bl SUY

n
uA
=
A
Q.




Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission — Report

Governing Authority: The City of Walthourville

Mayor & Council Date: July 9, 2024

Business License: H & L Tobacco Inc.

Business Owner: Maen Kassim

Address: 245 Slaten Street, 041B005 Property Owner is
No 1 China Restaurant Inc.

Zoned: C-3 (Highway Commercial)

Comments: They will need a Ga. Department of Revenue

License from the State to sell tobacco.
Mr. Kassim has several smoke shops in Hinesville

Recommendation: APPROVAL
LCPC Staff: C%(ﬂo 70@44) - 28 -4
Lori Parks Date

Zoning Administrator




,
LOF Gy
S =
City of Walthourville Business License Division
f‘r{p <7 Mailing Address:  P.O Box K
< 'R‘.,M.G" Walthourville, GA 31333
SRS e Office Location 222 Busbee Road

Walthourville, GA 31333
Phone:(912) 368-7501
Web site address- www.cityofwalthorville.com

Application For corporation or limited Liability Company LLC
Occupation Tax Certificate

*The application must be filled out completely to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation Tax
Certificate. Payment must be filed with the application to obtain a City of Walthourville Occupation tax
Certificate. This application will not be processed if it is not accompanied by the appropriate tax fee. You
will not be billed. Please print with ink or type. In order for the appropriate tax or fee to be determined
the application accompanied by all appropriate documents must be submitted in person.

Pursuant to The Georgia Immigration Reform Act that was passed by the State Legislature and signed by
the Governor all persons applying for renewing a City of Walthourville Tax Certificate must provide a
secure and verifiable document as required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1(e) (1) and sign and notarize the affidavit
required by 0.C.G.A 50-36-1 (e) (2) and the affidavit required by 0.C.G.A 36-60-6 {d).

This Business is: (X) New Application
() Ownership Change / Date ownership changed & Certificate #
() lamfilling a name/or address change for Certificate#

Name business as H Q{ L TOEDP(C(B L'\L- Business Phone#@t& )thg 7'—('/’ 7
O

Name of Corporatlon/LLC* Hé| L;_‘:[ﬁb
Business Address el 5\3 LL( GA NAID

Mailing Address 24 I&I\f [ JZOE (- 7> 13[.23
Email Address [Y] & N _‘7‘{ C{Mp(ﬂ, L) M

Full Detailed Description of <>
Business___~ ldéﬁr(’,@ DZF#

= 1 : =
Date Business began in City of Walthourville. <\ *kk\l 3-\ ?,ULJ—F
#of employees in City of Walthourville 7— -venfy# Aeqmred lf 11 or m%g 2 p]oyees
State Sales Tax ID# ZO Z&\ Z . Q FederalID #_ ﬂ-\’

T - S 7 -
Owner Name mpié’\: KASSTM SSH_ -2
7z gt e T 1
Home Address q&7 Fﬁw p\\}jé LN Aptit City H%\{ﬂléState Zip ES
“** All electrical, mechanical, plumbing, well drilling contractors, riobile home dealers, mobile home installers, and any other contractor that is
required to have 3 State of Georgia License will be required to attach a copy of the license to this application before insurance.

***All commercially used building may be subjact to an inspection for fire and safety code compliance prior to any certificate of occupancy or
business license being issued.




Are you, the applicant the corporation, LLC or any shareholder currently delinquent in payment of any
taxes or fees to any state or local government? NC If yes, please indicate the type of tax or fee, and
the amount due with the reason the tax is delinquent.

If this property is zoned residential, no clients I swear or affirm that | have obtained or will obtain
Employees, sales, deliveries, storage of inventory, within thirty days of the date of this application a
Or equipment are allowed on the premises. Only City of Walthourville Certificate of Occupancy as
One commercial vehicle not to exceed 12,500 Ibs required by the city ordinances.
Gross weight used as transportation by the occupant
May be parked at the residence. T T —
Q -

I will comply with the Zoning >< )
Restrictions stated above: M i Signature:_ (M <~

(initals) e N
| Matn Kessin , affirm that the facts stated by me are true, | understand any misrepresentation

or fraudulent statement is grounds for automatic dismissal of this application and/revocation of the
license. | understand that all signs displayed on my premise must be permitted by the City of
Walthourville, | further understand that my business must operated in compliances with all applicable
state, federal & local laws, ordinances & regulations, & that the granting of this occupation tax
certificate or payment of this occupation tax does not waive the right of any federal, state or local entity
to regulate & enforce laws, ordinances & regulations. | understand that all decisions of Business License
Division may be appealed to the City of Walthourville.

This__ 4 dayof Jiap~— 52024
\\\/_
; . N e . . ‘i,
Signature of appllcg_at_,./x\,f\:f’" legibly print name_fié/  K445:4

)
This application must be approved by the Liberty County Planning Commission

Tax Map & Parcel# O ‘_H ﬁOOS Zoning Classification Cé

Approved by: Date Approved:

Date the request will be presented to Mayor and Council: (0'”’34

***APPLICANT MUST COMPLETE THE AFFIDAVITS AND PROVIDE A SECURE AND VERIFIABLE DOCUMENT***



0.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(2) AFFIDAVIT

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a loan, grant, tax credit and/or other public
benefit, as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, administered by the Georgia Department of Community
Affairs, the undersigned applicant verifies one of the following with respect to my application for a public
benefit:

D X I am a United States Citizen.
2) I'am a legal permanent resident of the United States.

3) I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act
with an alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal

immigration agency.

My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal
immigration agency is:

The undersigned applicant also hercby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has provided
at least one secure and verifiable document, as required by O.C.G. A. § 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit.

The secure and verifiable document r%ided with this affidavit can best be classified as:
Q [CCZBE S

In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and willfully
makes a false fictitious, or frandulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be guilty of a
violation of O.C.G.A. 16-10-20, and face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal statute.

Exccuted this th ﬂc/iay of ;;U,Né ,2024({ ingb(\s(“( cf(jf (city),
X AN

———*Sipmatare of Applicant
MAe)  KASSTM

Printed Name of Applicant

(state).

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN Wiy
._BEFORE ME C%’_THI@ CTHF. R % = BU&""
DAY OF L\N ./‘ ,20 i N AT 58 ‘%,
SO,

QN Londen § SN, G2
= O: 9.

NOTARY PUBLIC Ry >3
- 3 mos
My Commission Expires: - ‘S_'y‘-,o;o SLic “-E >
qQ-15-21 s S
— , """" - \
"lfOR%?)\) N

*This Affidavit must be signed by the same person who executes the Application Certification Form Letter



Secure and Verifiable Documents Under O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2
Issued August 1, 2011 by the Office of the Attorney General, Georgia

The Tllegal Immigration Reform and Enforcement Act of 2011 (“IIREA”) provides that “[n]ot
later than August 1, 2011, the Attorney General shall provide and make public on the
Department of Law’s website a list of acceptable secure and verifiable documents. The list shall
be reviewed and updated annually by the Attorney General.” O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(f). The
Attorney General may modify this list on a more frequent basis, if necessary.

The following list of secure and verifiable documents, published under the authority of O.C.G.A.
§ 50-36-2, contains documents that are verifiable for identification purposes, and documents on
this list may not necessarily be indicative of residency or immigration status.

A United States passport or passport card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]
A United States military identification card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A driver’s license issued by one of the United States, the District of Columbia, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas
Islands, the United States Virgin Island, American Samoa, or the Swain Islands, provided
that it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information
regarding the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to
enable the identification of the bearer [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CEFR § 274a.2]

An identification card issued by one of the United States, the District of Columbia, the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas
Islands, the United States Virgin Island, American Samoa, or the Swain Islands, provided
that it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information
regarding the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to
enable the identification of the bearer [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A tribal identification card of a federally recognized Native American tribe, provided that
it contains a photograph of the bearer or lists sufficient identifying information regarding
the bearer, such as name, date of birth, gender, height, eye color, and address to enable
the identification of the bearer. A listing of federally recognized Native American tribes
may be found at:
hitp://www.bia.cov/WhoWeAre/BIA/OIS/TribalGovernmeniServices/TribalDirectory/ind
ex-htm [O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A United States Permanent Resident Card or Alien Registration Receipt Card [0.C.G.A.
§ 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

An Employment Authorization Document that contains a photograph of the bearer
[0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A passport issued by a foreign government [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]



A Merchant Mariner Document or Merchant Mariner Credential issued by the United
States Coast Guard [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 8 CFR § 274a.2]

A Free and Secure Trade (FAST) card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]
A NEXUS card [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]

A Secure Electronic Network for Travelers Rapid Inspection (SENTRI) card [0.C.G.A.
§ 50-36-2(b)(3); 22 CFR § 41.2]

A driver’s license issued by a Canadian government authority [O.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);
8 CFR § 274a.2]

A Certificate of Citizenship issued by the United States Department of Citizenship and
Immigration Services (USCIS) (Form N-560 or Form N-561) [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);
6 CFR § 37.11]

A Certificate of Naturalization issued by the United States Department of Citizenship and
Immigration Services (USCIS) (Form N-550 or Form N-570) [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(b)(3);
6 CFR § 37.11]

In addition to the documents listed herein, if, in administering a public benefit or
program, an agency is required by federal law to accept a document or other form of
identification for proof of or documentation of identity, that document or other form of
identification will be deemed a secure and verifiable document solely for that particular
program or administration of that particular public benefit. [0.C.G.A. § 50-36-2(c)]



Private Employer Affidavit Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d)

By executing this affidavit under oath, the undersigned private employer verifies one of the
following with respect to its application for a business license, occupational tax certificate, or other
document required to operate a business as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6(d):

Section 1. Please check only one:
(A) On January 1* of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed more than ten (10) employees'.

#** If you select Section 1(A), please fill out Section 2 and then execute below.

(B) Zg On January 1* of the below-signed year, the individual, firm, or
corporation employed ten (10) or fewer employees.

*** If you select Section 1(B), please skip Section 2 and execute below.

Section 2.

The employer has registered with and utilizes the federal work authorization program in
accordance with the applicable provisions and deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 36-60-6. The
undersigned private employer also attests that its federal work authorization user identification

number and date of authorization are as follows:

Name of Private Employer

Federal Work Authorization User Identification Number

Date of Authorization

egoing is true and correct.

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the f
&, 202Mn ,2&3{ (city), («?‘{r (state).

Executed on JUAL”

Signature of Authorized Officer or Agent
\\“‘";:' 11,
SRELE By

MG besStm  QAFLCER SR F.
O,

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Officer or Agent <
= eé\ oy, % L
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN BEFORE ¥ S 0l o, el A%‘;{_:
DAY OF AU E{ 202k IR %y, pxS
Z &9, CESST
72027 .~ RS
N

/(I‘iTHIS THE i “ & ;
4 a2 3 = =

NOTfR%%{EB cb W ’,%%z't'-"éiijiﬁ“. LN

LI 0 I’ GI \\

qll/g - 2/1 LAY

My Commission Expires:

' To determine the number of employees for purposes of this affidavit, a business must count its total number of
employees company-wide, regardless of the city, state, or country in which they are based, working at least 35 hours

a week.



STATE OF

Secretary
Corporatio
313 Wes

2 Martin Luthd
Atlanta, Georg

CERTIFICATE OF

Control Number : 24012994

yEORGIA
y of State

ns Division

t Tower

tr King, Jr. Dr.,
ia 30334-1530

INCORPORATION

[, Brad Raffensperger, the Secretary of State and the Corporation Commissioner of the State of

(Georga, hereby certify under the seal of my office tha

H&LTo
a Domestic Pro

t

bacco Inc
it Corporation

has bezn duly incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia on 01/19/2024 by the filing of articles

of incorporation in the Office of the Secretary of Sta
of the :Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

WITN
and th

e and by the paying of fees as provided by Title 14

ESS my hand and ofticial seal in the City of Atlanta
e State of Georgia on 01/19/2024.

i A

Brad Ralfensperger
Secretary of State




ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

*Electronically Filed*
Secretary of State
Filing Date: 1/19/2024 1:03:57 PM

|BUSLNESS INFORMATION,

24012994

CONTROL NUMBER

BUSINESS NAME H & L Tobacco Inc
BUSINESS TYPE Domestic Profit Corporat
EFFECTIVE DATE 01/19/2024

SHAERES 1000

0

1l

PRINCIPAL OFFICE ADDRESS

245 Slaten St, Hineville,

ADDEESS iA, 31313, USA

|REGISTERED AGENT » a4

NAMIL ADDRESS COUNTY
Maen Kassim 27 Primrose Lane, Hinesville, GA, 31331, USA Liberty

[INCORPORATOR(S) | :

NAME, TITLE ADDRESS

Adnan Adel Ahmed Saleh INCORPORATOR 105 Clover Point Cir, Guyton, GA, 31312, USA
Maen k.assim INCORPORATOR 927 Primrose Lane, Hinesville, GA, 31313, USA
|OPTIONAL PROVISIONS |

N/A

|AUTHORIZER INFORMATION |

AUTHORIZER SIGNATURE Maen Kassim

AUTHORIZER TITLE Incorporator




DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
CINCINNATI CH 45999-0023

Gl RS

H & L TOBACCO INC
1940 MILLS B LANE BLVD STE C
SAVANNAH, GA 31405

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER

Thank you for applying for an Employel
EIN 99-0824986. This EIN will identify yo
documents, even if you have no employees.
records.

A,
Please keep this notice in your permanent

Date ¢f this nouice: 01-22-2024

Employer Identification Number:

99-0824986
Form: SS-4
Number of this notice: CP 575 A
For assistance you may call us at:
1-800-829-4933
IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICI.
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
r Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you

your business accounts, tax returns, and

Taxpayers request an EIN for their business. Some taxpayers receive CP575 notices when

another person nas stolen their identity ai
If you did not apply for this EIN, please
on the top of this notice.

When filing tax documents, making payr
it is very important that you use your EIN
abova. Any variation may cause a delay in ¥
your account, or even cause you to be assic

not correct as shown above, please make the correction using

and return it to us.

nd are opening a business using their information.
contact us at the phone number o1 address listed

to any related correspondence,
and address exactly as shown
in incorrect information in
EIN. If the information is
the attached tear-off stub

nents, or replying
and complete name
brocessing, result
yned more than one

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file

the following forms by the dates shown.
Form 941
Form 940
Form 1120

Your Form 11C and/cr

If you have questions about the forms

zhe ochone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice.
need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year),

Accounting Periods and Methods.

We assigned you a tax classification

information obtained from you or your representative.
of your tax classification, and is not binding on the IRS.

10/31/2024
01/31/2025
04/15/2025

730 becomes due the month after your wagering starts.

or the due dates shown, you can call us at
If you
see Publication 538,

{corporation, partnership, etc.) based on
It is not a legal determination
If you want a legal

determination o your tax classification, you may request a private letter ruling
from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure 2020-1, 2020-1 I.R.B. 1 {or

superseding Revenue Procedure for the year

‘at issue). Note: Certain tax classification

eleczions can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity Classification Election.

See

Torm 8832 and its instructions for additional information.



& =
& g

g :bed||  veoe-lz-90:seal|

“Inowd
5008170 #Nid |

159610 v202 pied pioosy Auadoid Ajunon Ausqiy \\t»@d



Eou.mmbc:ou>:o£_.>>>>§:..a:z Z
¥202/L2/9 uo pajuldg
\ 895€-9/8 (216) :auoyd

cleLe eibioag 'ajinsauly

0SS| 2UNS '19aas wep ool

199} 6 = Yyoul | 9310 ,s10SSassy
funog Apaary

] T T T
W €00 5100 0

Te)sR ] e e ...,L.Wmﬁm‘o

Y v

e
nog

<

sjeoled
speoy

)OOH pue L opian0 [

aulq oyep sealy




STATE OF GEORGIA

) INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING

=———=—e SRRV AL AGREEMENT REGARDING

) LIBERTY COUNTY 2024 TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL
COUNTY OF LIBERTY )

PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES AND USE TAX

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAI AGREEMENT REGARDING LIBERTY COUNTY
2024 TRANSPORTATION SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCAL OPTION SALES AND USE TAX
(this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the Effective Date (as defined below) by and
between LIBERTY COUNTY (the “County”), a political subdivision of the State of Georgia,
and the CITIES OF ALLENHURST, FLEMINGTON, GUMBRANCH, HINESVILLE,
MIDWAY, RICEBORO, and WALTHOURVILLE (each such municipality, a “Municipality”,
and collectively, the “Municipalities”), each a municipal corporation created and existing under
the laws of the State of Georgia (said County and Municipalities each being sometimes referred
to as a “party”, and collectively as the “parties™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, under Article 5A of Chapter 8 of Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated (“0.C.G.A.”) § 48-8-260, et seq. (the “Act”), and by following the procedures set
forth therein, a qualified county may impose a Transportation Special Purpose Local Option
Sales and Use Tax (“TSPLOST?”) for designated transportation purposes at a rate of up to one
(1%) percent, and if an intergovernmental agreement is entered into by a county and the qualified
municipalities, such tax may be collected for a period of not more than six (6) years within a
special district having a geographical boundary coterminous with that of the county, subject to
approval of said TSPLOST by the voters within the special district at a referendum held for such
purpose; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-8-261(b), a county is qualified to levy a
TSPLOST under the Act if (i) it is not located within a special district levying a regional special
sales and use tax under Article 5 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 of 0.C.G.A; (ii) it is not defined as a
metropolitan county special district governed by Part 2 of said Act; and (iii) among other taxes, a
special purpose local option sales and use tax is currently being levied and collected pursuant to
Part 1 of Article 3 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated; and

WHEREAS, there currently is a TSPLOST being collected in the County, which tax was
approved by the voters on June 9, 2020, which is estimated to collect the estimated amount of
$54,000,000 prior to end of the five (5) year collection period as authorized by such referendum;
and

WHEREAS, O.C.GA. § 48-8-262(a) requires that, prior to issuance of the call for the
required referendum and after determining that the region of which it is a part is not currently
proposing a special sales and use tax under Article 5 of Chapter 8 of Title 48 of O.CG.A., a
county desiring to levy a TSPLOST within a county-wide special district must notify the mayor
of each qualified municipality located within the county-wide special district of a meeting at
which the governing authorities of the county and each such municipality are to meet to discuss
possible projects for inclusion in the referendum and the rate of the tax to be imposed; and

WHEREAS, following said meeting and prior to any TSPLOST being imposed,
O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(b)(1) authorizes the execution of an intergovernmental agreement between



the participating county and qualified municipalities therein memorializing their agreement to
levy the TSPLOST and the rate of such tax, which agreement shall minimally include the
information, schedules, procedures, and other provisions enumerated in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
262(b)(2); and

WHEREAS, after making the determination required by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(a)(1) and
following issuance of the notice prescribed by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(a)(2), the governing
Authority of the County, desirous of imposing a TSPLOST under the Act and otherwise
qualified to do so, met with the Municipalities on April 10, 2024 to discuss those matters
contemplated under the Act; and

WHEREAS, as a result of said meeting, the County and the Municipalities have, among
other agreements, jointly determined that the rate of the TSPLOST should be one percent (1%) to
be collected for a period of six (6) years, and identified the transportation projects and purposes
to be funded from the proceeds thereof (collectively, and as described on the attached Exhibit
£A”, the “Transportation Projects and Purposes”); and

WHEREAS, the County and Municipalities recognize that in order to timely and
appropriately meet the transportation needs of their residents and to otherwise facilitate the
acquisition, construction and installation of certain of the Transportation Projects and Purposes
that it may be necessary for the County or any one or more of the Municipalities to issue general
obligation debt in conjunction with the TSPLOST; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Article IX, Section III, Paragraph I of the
Constitution of the State of Georgia authorizing intergovernmental agreements generally and the
provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(b) providing for intergovernmental agreements incident to
the imposition of a TSPLOST, the County and Municipalities desire to enter into this Agreement
concerning, inter alia, the call for the subject referendum, authorization of general obligation
debt, and the levy of the TSPLOST and its collection, division, distribution, accounting, and use.

NOW THEREFORE, incorporating the foregoing recitals, and in consideration of the
mutual covenants and promises herein contained, and other good and valuable considerations,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby expressly acknowledged, the County and
Municipalities agree and bind themselves as follows:

1.  Continuation of Special Tax District. By its adoption and execution of this

Agreement, together with any and all required resolution(s) in connection herewith, the County
does and shall, pursuant to the authority granted under O.C.G.A. § 48-8-261, continue a special
tax district for the levy and imposition of the TSPLOST contemplated herein. The geographical
boundaries of the special tax district continued shall be coterminous with the geographical
boundaries of the County (the “Special District”).

2. Adoption of County Resolution; Issuance of Call for Referendum. As soon as

practicable after the adoption and execution of this Agreement by all parties, the County shall
consider a resolution containing that information set forth in 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(d)(2), and
authorizing a referendum to be held on November 5, 2024 for the purpose of submitting to the
electors of the Special District the question of whether or not the one (1%) percent TSPLOST
described in this Agreement should be reimposed (the “TSPLOST Special Election” or

<3 -



“Special Election”). Upon approval of said resolution by the governing authority of the County,
the County shall notify the Liberty County Board of Elections and Registration (the “Election
Superintendent”) by forwarding to said Election Superintendent a copy of such resolution, with
the list of Transportation Projects and Purposes, or a digest thereof, to be made available during
regular business hours in the office of the governing authority of the County. If the imposition of
the TSPLOST is approved by the electors of the Special District at the TSPLOST Special Election,
a one percent (1%) sales and use tax will be imposed, as provided by law, for the purpose of
funding the Transportation Projects and Purposes (the 2024 TSPLOST”).

3. Term of Agreement: Condition Precedent; Term of Tax; Estimated Tax
Revenue. This Agreement shall be effective and binding as of the date all of the parties hereto
have approved and executed the same (as confirmed by the parties on the signature pages hereto)
(said last date of execution being referred to as the “Effective Date”), and shall terminate upon
(a) the official declaration of the failure of the TSPLOST Special Election; or (b) the expenditure
by the County and Municipalities of all revenues from the 2024 TSPLOST in accordance with
this Agreement. This Agreement is contingent and conditioned upon approval of the imposition
of the 2024 TSPLOST described herein by the electors of the Special District at the TSPLOST
Special Election. If approved, said 2024 TSPLOST shall be effectively imposed commencing
upon the termination of the TSPLOST currently in effect (anticipated to be September 30, 2025),
and shall continue for a period of six (6) years thereafter in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
262. The total estimated revenue from the 2024 TSPLOST authorized herein is $76,000,000.00,
which is the amount of net proceeds estimated to be raised by the 2024 TSPLOST.

4. Projects Authorized; Allocation of Tax Proceeds. The list of the Transportation

Projects and Purposes qualifying as “transportation purposes” (as defined by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
260(4)) to be funded from the 2024 TSPLOST, including an expenditure of at least thirty
percent (30%) of the estimated revenue from said 2024 TSPLOST on projects (sometimes
collectively referred to as the “State Projects”) consistent with the State-Wide Strategic
Transportation Plan defined in O.C.G.A. § 32-3-22(a)(6), together with the estimated dollar
amounts allocated for each of the Transportation Projects and Purposes from said 2024
TSPLOST proceeds, is attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. Regardless of any projected or
estimated revenues from the 2024 TSPLOST, the actual 2024 TSPLOST proceeds shall be
allocated between and among the parties hereto, on a percentage basis of the total amount of the
2024 TSPLOST funds collected and received, as follows: 43.656% to the County (which shall
include that portion of the 2024 TSPLOST funds allocated to County-specific projects, as well
as the State Projects); 41.767% to Hinesville; 4.066% to Walthourville; 1.937% to Midway;
6.307% to Flemington; 0.714% to Riceboro; 1.322% to Allenhurst; and 0.232% to
Gumbranch. No party shall be entitled to request or receive more than their respective pro-rata
share of said 2024 TSPLOST revenues based on the tax amounts actually received from the
Department of Revenue or the County, as the case may be.

S.  Authority to Issue General Obligation Debt; Retirement of Existin General

Obligation Debt.

(@ Pursuant to 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-263(d), the County and the City of Hinesville
shall be authorized to issue general obligation debt in accordance with Article IX, Section V,
Paragraph 1 of the Constitution of the State of Georgia, in order to finance those Transportation
Projects and Purposes attributable to said party. The maximum amount of general obligation

-3-



debt which may be authorized by the County and the City of Hinesville hereunder shall be the
respective dollar amounts allocated to each party as shown on said Exhibit “A”. The
authorization to issue general obligation debt hereunder shall include the right to re-structure
or re-finance the same throughout the imposition of the 2024 SPLOST; provided that the
terms of any re-structure or re-finance shall not cause the amount of existing and outstanding
general obligation debt authorized hereunder to at any time exceed the maximum outstanding
principal indebtedness amount(s) described herein.

(b) As permitted by the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-260(4)(b), the
authorization to issue general obligation debt hereunder shall include the right to utilize the
2024 TSPLOST proceeds to retire previously incurred general obligation debt issued by either
the County or the City of Hinesville as shown on the attached Exhibit “A”, but only where
said debt was issued for such transportation purposes as identified in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
260(4)(A), and only to the extent that the combined amounts of any previously incurred general
obligation debt retired and any new general obligation debt issued by the County or the City of
Hinesville hereunder do not exceed the maximum amount(s) authorized hereunder for said

party.

(¢) Inits resolution to be adopted pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Agreement, the
County shall instruct the Elections Superintendent to include necessary language concerning the
authority to issue general obligation debt and the ballot presented to the voters of the Special
District as a part of the TSPLOST Special Election shall contain the language required under
O.C.G.A. § 48-8-263(2) concerning the issuance of said general obligation debt. If the 2024
TSPLOST is approved as required by law, the County and the City of Hinesville shall be
authorized to issue general obligation debt in any manner authorized by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
263(d)(2), subject to the maximum dollar limitations set forth herein.

(d) Any and all general obligation debt issued by the County and the City of
Hinesville pursuant to the authority granted hereunder shall be subject to the requirements and
restrictions imposed under O.C.G.A. § 48-8-269.5.

6.  Priority of Projects. The County and each Municipality shall have the right to
prioritize those Transportation Projects and Purposes attributable to them, provided that all such
Transportation Projects and Purposes shall comply with both the provisions of this Agreement
and the Act.

7. Re-Allocation of Funds. Any 2024 TSPLOST proceeds received but not required
to complete any of the Transportation Projects and Purposes may be allocated by the responsible
party to different transportation purposes (as defined by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-260(4)), subject to the
requirements of this Agreement and the Act. Where any one or more of the Transportation
Projects and Purposes attributable to a party is found to be impractical or not necessary by the
party undertaking the same or its legality is subject to question, its funding may be re-allocated
to another of its Transportation Projects and Purposes where necessary, or an alternative
transportation purpose may be selected by said party, subject to the requirement that said
transportation purpose be one which the proceeds of the 2024 TSPLOST have been approved in
the TSPLOST Special Election (as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto). Any re-allocation of 2024
TSPLOST funds as provided above or designation of a project as unfeasible or impractical shall
also comply with all provisions of the Act.

-4 -



8. Completion of Projects. The County and Municipalities shall promptly move
forward with the acquisition, construction, and installation of their respective Transportation
Projects and Purposes in an efficient and economical manner, at a reasonable cost, and in
conformity with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. Each party shall maintain
any and all records and documentation concerning their undertaking of the Transportation
Projects and Purposes authorized herein which may be required by law and said records and
documents shall be subject to public inspection as required by law.

9.  Collection and Distribution of TSPLOST Proceeds; Segregation of Funds. Upon
effective implementation of the 2024 TSPLOST, the County and Municipalities shall each
establish independent and separate special trust funds, each of which shall be designated as a
TSPLOST Fund in compliance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-269.5(a) (each, a
“Special Account” and, collectively, the “Special Accounts”). The County and Municipalities
shall each be responsible for selecting a local bank or banks which shall act as a depository and
custodian of their respective Special Accounts upon such terms and conditions as may be
acceptable to each party. The monies collected by the Georgia Department of Revenue from and
through the imposition of the 2024 TSPLOST, less the one (1%) percent paid into the general
fund of the state treasury pursuant to 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-267(a)(1), shall be paid to the County and
shall be deposited by the County in its Special Account. The monies received by the County in
its Special Account shall be held and applied to the cost of reimbursing the County for
administering the Special Account and to distributions required hereunder and for the costs and
expenses incurred by the County in undertaking those Transportation Projects and Purposes
attributable to it under this Agreement, and all of the permitted expenses incidental thereto, and
the payment of any debt service authorized hereunder. On or before the fifteenth (15™) day of
each month, the County shall distribute to the Municipalities their proportionate percentages of
the 2024 TSPLOST proceeds as required under this Agreement and based upon the actual
amount of the 2024 TSPLOST proceeds received by the County in the month prior to
distribution. The 2024 TSPLOST proceeds distributed by the County to the Municipalities shall
be deposited into and held in their respective Special Accounts. The monies received by the
Municipalities in their respective Special Accounts shall be held and applied to the cost of
reimbursing the Municipalities for administering their respective Special Accounts and to
distributions required hereunder and for the costs and expenses incurred by the Municipalities in
undertaking their respective Transportation Projects and Purposes authorized under this
Agreement, and all of the permitted expenses incidental thereto, and the payment of any debt
service authorized hereunder. If general obligation debt is issued by the County or the City of
Hinesville in accordance with this Agreement, the 2024 TSPLOST shall first be used for paying
the debt service requirements on such general obligation debt for any such year before such
proceeds are spent on their respective Transportation Projects and Purposes, as required by the
Act. The parties agree that they will not cause or permit to be withdrawn from their respective
Special Accounts any monies except in accordance with the terms and provisions of this
Agreement and the Act. The parties further agree that no funds other than those received from
the 2024 TSPLOST authorized herein shall be deposited in the Special Accounts and that funds
from the Special Accounts shall not be commingled with any other funds or accounts of the
parties. The County shall be responsible for administering the initial collections and
distributions to and from its Special Account in a manner designated to effectuate the terms of
this Agreement and shall be reimbursed for the actual cost incurred by the County in said
administration; provided, however, that if agreed to by the Georgia Department of Revenue, the

-5-



proportionate amounts of the 2024 TSPLOST proceeds due to the County and each Municipality
hereunder shall be paid directly into the Special Accounts maintained by said County and each
Municipality, in which case the County shall be relieved from any obligation to receive,
administer, disburse, or account for said 2024 TSPLOST proceeds which it would otherwise be
obligated but for such direct payment to the Municipalities (and all such obligations shall be
assumed by each Municipality with respect to its Special Account), except that the County shall
in any event receive and disburse those 2024 TSPLOST proceeds attributable to the City of
Allenhurst and the City of Gumbranch and shall maintain the respective Special Account for
each such Municipality. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the County and any Municipality,
all work associated with the Transportation Projects and Purposes for which a portion of the
2024 TSPLOST proceeds are allocated to a Municipality hereunder shall be undertaken and
administered by the responsible Municipality or its contractors, and the County shall have no
obligation to administer or prosecute said Transportation Projects and Purposes on behalf of any
Municipality, except for those obligations relating to any Special Account into which it is
required to disburse 2024 TSPLOST proceeds, whether arising by virtue the refusal of the
Georgia Department of Revenue to make direct payments to the County and each Municipality
as contemplated herein or, with respect to the City of Allenhurst and the City of Gumbranch, the
assumption of such obligations by the County. Additionally, and whether or not 2024 TSPLOST
proceeds are disbursed to the Municipalities by the Department of Revenue or the County, the
County shall receive all 2024 TSPLOST funds dedicated to the State Projects; provided,
however, that, with respect to any State Project that is located within the jurisdictional limits of
any Municipality and which the County has otherwise consented to said Municipality’s
administration and undertaking of said State Project, the County shall disburse from time to time
to said Municipality its proportionate share of the 2024 TSPLOST revenues which are
attributable to the State Project(s) being undertaken by the Municipality within its jurisdiction.

10. Permitted Uses of Proceeds from Special Accounts. All funds in the Special
Accounts shall be used exclusively for the purpose of paying for the cost of undertaking the
Transportation Projects and Purposes, and the expenses incidental thereto, and without intending
hereby to limit or restrict or to extend any proper definition of such costs and expenses as now
provided by the Act, said costs and expenses shall include:

(@) the cost of premiums on insurance bonds, including performance and payment
bonds, if any, in connection with the Transportation Projects and Purposes until the completion
date;

(b) the fees and expenses of architects and/or engineers for surveys and estimates,
preparation of plans, specifications and recommendations and supervision of acquisition,
construction and installment of the Transportation Projects and Purposes, as well as for the
performance of all other duties of such architects and engineers in relation thereto;

(¢) the expenses of administration of such undertakings, including legal fees and
accounting fees;

(d) any taxes or other government charges, if any, lawfully levied or assessed
upon the Transportation Projects and Purposes prior to the completion date;

-6-



(¢) the cost of acquiring by purchase any lands, machinery and equipment, and
any easements, rights, or damages incident to or arising as a consequence of the acquisition,
construction and installation of the Transportation Projects and Purposes;

(f)  the costs for labor, amounts payable to contractors, builders and material men
in connection with the undertaking of the Transportation Projects and Purposes; and

(g) such other fees, costs, expenses and other charges of whatever nature
incidental and pertaining to the undertaking of the Transportation Projects and Purposes.

11. Documentation and Authority for Withdrawals: All withdrawals from the -
Special Accounts shall be made by checks signed or countersigned by a person or persons
designated by the respective governing authority responsible for such Special Account, but,
before any such check shall be signed, there shall be filed with said governing authority the
following (on forms prescribed by said governing authority or, if disbursements are being made
into said Special Account by the County, for whatever reason, on forms prescribed by the
County):

(@) a written requisition for such payment stating each amount to be paid and the
name of the person, firm, corporation or entity to which payment shall be made; and

(b) a written statement signed by a public official designating which of the
Transportation Projects and Purposes the monies will be used.

12.  Audit, Record Retention and Reporting: During the period of this Agreement, the
County and the Municipalities shall maintain the records required by 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-269.5(a)(2)

concerning the use of the 2024 TSPLOST proceeds and shall comply with the audit requirements
of 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-269.5(a)(2). All monies deposited in the Special Accounts shall be audited by
a certified public accounting firm at such time or times as the official audits of the party are
made. Each of the parties agrees to cooperate with such certified public accounting firm(s) in any
such audit by providing any and all necessary information. The cost of any such audit(s) shall be
paid from the Special Accounts. In addition, the County and Municipalities shall each comply
with the annual reporting requirements contained in O.C.G.A. § 48-8-269.6. The cost of such
reporting requirements shall be paid from the Special Accounts.

13. Mutual Representations and Warranties. In furtherance of the public purposes

of this Agreement, the County and Municipalities each represent and warrant to the other (which
representations and warranties shall be deemed independently material notwithstanding any prior
inquiries or knowledge of the other parties) that: (a) it has the power to make, deliver and
perform this Agreement, and has taken all necessary action to authorize the execution, delivery
and performance of this Agreement; (b) this Agreement when executed will constitute the valid
obligations with respect to it legally binding upon the same and enforceable in accordance with
the terms hereof; (c) its representatives executing this Agreement have been duly authorized to
execute and deliver the same by all appropriate action on the party’s governing authority; (d) no
further consent or approval of any other party not specifically mentioned herein is required in
connection with the execution, delivery, performance, validity and enforcement of this

=7



Agreement; and (e) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement will not
contravene any contract, undertaking, instrument or other agreement to which it is a party or
which purports to be binding upon it, or violate the provisions of its respective charter (or similar
organizational legislation) or Code of Ordinances, or any statutory or decisional laws of the State
of Georgia respecting similarly situated municipal corporations or political subdivisions of said
State, as the case may be. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, each party hereby
expressly represents and warrants that it has formally adopted and approved a resolution
authorizing this Agreement at a duly called public meeting of its governing authority in
accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Georgia, to include the Georgia Open
Meetings Act, 0.C.G.A. 50-14-1 et seq. and any applicable provisions of its respective charter
(or other organizational legislation) or Code of Ordinances. Each Municipality further represents
and warrants that (w) it is a duly created and existing municipal corporation under the laws of the
State of Georgia; (x) it is a “qualified municipality” under the provisions of O.C.G.A. § 48-8-
110; (y) all its respective boundaries are located within Liberty County; and (z) it was given
notice of the meeting of the County and Municipalities held on April 10, 2024 in accordance
with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262(a)(2).

14. Severability. If any provision at this Agreement or any provision of the law
authorizing this Agreement or the holding of the election authorizing the imposition of the
TSPLOST described herein shall be declared or held to be invalid, such invalid provision shall
be severable from the remaining provisions of this Agreement and the remaining provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

1S. Counterparts; Electronic Execution. This Agreement may be executed in

multiple counterparts, each of which shall serve as an original for all purposes, but all copies
shall constitute but one and the same Agreement, binding on all parties hereto, whether or not
each counterpart is executed by all parties hereto, so long as each party hereto has executed one
Or more counterparts hereof. In this connection and to facilitate the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the parties may execute and exchange such counterparts by facsimile or other
electronic transmission (e.g. pdf via email, etc.); it being acknowledged that, notwithstanding
any statutory or decisional law to the contrary, the printed product of such facsimile transmittal
or other electronic transmission of the signature page(s) of this Agreement shall be deemed to be
“written” and a “writing” for all purposes of this Agreement, and shall otherwise constitute an
original document binding upon the transmitting party.

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and no representations, inducements, promises or
agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties not embodied herein shall be of any force or
effect. In this connection, it is further specifically acknowledged and agreed that each
Municipality has or will make such independent review and evaluation, as well as all other
decisions, pertaining to the 2024 TSPLOST and the Transportation Projects and Purposes
proposed to be funded, in whole or in part, by the same, without reliance upon any oral or written
representation, warranty, information, advice, or analysis of any kind whatsoever from the
County, however obtained, except for those agreements and representations, if any, expressly
and specifically set forth herein. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the County
specifically disclaims any and all representations or warranties, express or implied, regarding the
success of the TSPLOST Special Election, the amounts to be raised by the 2024 TSPLOST, the
imposition of the 2024 TSPLOST, or the allocation of any amount generated by virtue of any

-8-



future or reimposed TSPLOST; it being further acknowledged by each Municipality that any of
the Transportation Projects and Purposes funded, in whole or in part, from the 2024 TSPLOST
shall be undertaken at the Municipality’s sole risk and that, except as set forth herein (but subject
to the conditions contained in or implied by this Agreement regarding the imposition, collection,
and allocation of said 2024 TSPLOST), and that no amounts whatsoever are guaranteed to the
Municipalities in connection with the 2024 TSPLOST or any future TSPLOST.

17. Amendments, Etc. No amendment, modification, termination, or waiver of any
provision of this Agreement, nor consent to any departure by the parties, shall in any event be
effective unless the same shall be in writing and signed by the parties (and approved by their
respective governing bodies in accordance with applicable legal requirements), and then such
waiver or consent shall be effective only in the specific instance and for the specific purpose for
which given.

18. Assignment. The rights and obligations of the parties under this Agreement are
personal and may not be assigned for any reason.

19. Construction; Exhibits. The parties hereto acknowledge that this Agreement shall
in all instances be interpreted consistent with the Act, the provisions of which are by this
reference incorporated herein for all purposes. Each and every exhibit referred to or otherwise
mentioned in this Agreement and attached hereto shall be construed to be made a part of this
Agreement by such reference or other mention at each point at which such reference or other
mention occurs, in the same manner and with the same effect as if each exhibit were set forth in

full and at length every time it is referred to or otherwise mentioned.

20. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement and all rights and obligations of the
parties hereunder shall be construed under and according to the laws of the State of Georgia. The
venue for resolution of any disputes arising hereunder shall be in Liberty County.

21. Interpretation. Titles of sections as set forth herein are for convenience only and
in no way define, limit, amplify or describe the scope or intent of any provisions hereof. All
references to sections, schedules and exhibits are to sections, schedules and exhibits in or to this
Agreement unless otherwise specified. Unless otherwise specified, the words “hereof,” “herein”
and “hereunder” and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this
Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement. Unless otherwise
specified, all meanings attributed to defined terms herein shall be equally applicable to both the
singular and plural forms of the terms so defined and “include” and “including” means including
(or to include) without limitation.

[ Signatures Appear on F ollowing Page(s) ]



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and affixed their seals on the
Effective Date.
LIBERTY COUNTY
(OFFICIAL SEAL)

By:

Donald L. Lovette, Chairman

Attest:
Joseph W. Brown, Administrator

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Continued on F ollowing Page(s) ]

-10 -



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

CITY OF ALLENHURST, GEORGIA
(OFFICAL SEAL)

By:

James Willis, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Appear on Following Page(s) ]

-11 -



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

CITY OF FLEMINGTON, GEORGIA

By:

.Paul Hawkins, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Appear on F ollowing Page(s) ]

- 12 -



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

CITY OF GUMBRANCH, GEORGIA

By:

Tina Eason, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Appear on Following Page(s) ]

-13 -



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

CITY OF HINESVILLE, GEORGIA

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

By:

Karl Riles, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Continued on Following Page(s) ]

-14 -



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

CITY OF MIDWAY, GEORGIA

By:

Levern Clancy, Jr., Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date: , 2024

[ Signatures Continued on Following Page(s) ]

-15-



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

CITY OF RICEBORO, GEORGIA

By:

Christopher Stacy, Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Date; , 2024

[ Signatures Continued on F ollowing Page(s) ]

-16-



[ Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Liberty County 2024 TSPLOST ]

(OFFICIAL SEAL)

CITY OF WALTHOURVILLE

By:

Sarah B. Hayes, Mayor

Attest;

Date:

[ Exhibit(s) Attached ]

-17 -



EXHIBIT “A”
TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS AND PURPOSES

Use of Proceeds: All proceeds collected from the 2024 TSPLOST shall be utilized for
“transportation purposes” as defined in 0.C.G.A. § 48-8-260(4) and for the specific categories of
projects authorized and described in the Schedule below.

Distribution of Proceeds; Project Priority: All projects in the categories described below shall
have equal priority and shall receive pro-rata allocation of 2024 TSPLOST proceeds on a
monthly basis. The parties shall each determine, in their discretion, the order in which a
particular specific project or projects are commenced.

2024 TSPLOST Revenue Estimate: The parties estimate that the 2024 TSPLOST shall
generate total sales tax revenue in the amount of $76,000,000.00 over twenty-four (24) calendar
quarters from the date collections commence, which is the estimated amount of net proceeds to
be raised by the 2024 TSPLOST. However, irrespective of the amount collected, the 2024
TSPLOST proceeds shall be divided and distributed on the pro rata percentage established in the
Schedule below.

Project County/Municipality | Estimated | Pro Rata
Cost
Constructing, improving, renovating, County $33,178,267 | 43.656%

repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same; including further new general
obligation debt and other multi-year
obligations issued to finance any of the

-18 -



foregoing purposes. At least thirty (30%)
percent of the amount spent for road, street,
and bridge purposes shall be consistent with
the state-wide strategic transportation plan as
defined in 0.C.G.A. § 32-2-22(a)(6).

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

City of Allenhurst

$1,004,693

1.322%

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements

City of Flemington

$4,793,123

6.307%

-19-




for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

City of Gumbranch

$176,161

0.232%

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment

City of Midway

$1,471,802

1.937%

-20 -




and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment

and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements

for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same; including further new general
obligation debt and other multi-year
obligations issued to finance any of the
foregoing purposes.

City of Hinesville

$31,742,831 | 41.767%

-21-



Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

City of Riceboro

$542,900

0.714%

Constructing, improving, renovating,
repairing, re-surfacing, patching, milling,
leveling, widening, shoulder preparation,
culvert repair, preservation, and extending
roads, streets, sidewalks, walking trails,
bicycle paths, and bridge projects and
improvements; stormwater projects and
projects to improve surface water drainage
from or in connection with any of the
foregoing; acquisition of all necessary rights
of way; re-location of necessary utilities for
any of the foregoing purposes; including
matching funds for grants awarded for the
capital outlay projects specified in above
items and funds for purchase and payment
and satisfaction of lease purchase agreements
for capital assets including machinery and
equipment necessary or desirable to
accomplish the above projects, together with
all infrastructure, activities or structures
useful or incident to providing access to the
same.

City of
Walthourville

$3,090,223

4.066%

e




Presentation by M

ayor Sarah B. Hayes




